BRACEBRIDGE LIBRARY BOARD MEETING
Date: Tuesday, March 25, 2025 @ 1:00pm

Location: Coulson Family Bracebridge Library in the Lyle and Margaret Cathcart Boardroom

MINUTES

(as amended)

Vision: An engaged, informed, inclusive and inspired community that is anything but the
ordinary.

Mission: To enrich, empower and inspire our community.

Present: B. Hutchinson, J. Wolochatiuk, D. Smith (left at 2:20pm), A. King, L. Boucher,
C. Bergstrome (CEQ)
Regrets: C. Robinson, B. Glass

1. Call to order by the Chair, B. Hutchinson, at 1:00pm
2. Land Acknowledgement — L. Boucher

“We would like to begin by acknowledging that the Bracebridge Library is on the traditional
territory of the Anishinaabe — specifically the Ojibway, the Chippewa, and the Algonquin
peoples. This land was a part of the 1923 Williams Treaties. We recognize and appreciate the
historic and present contributions that First Nations, Metis, and Inuit people have made to our
fown and our country. We challenge everyone here today to seek out knowledge and take
actions toward real truth and reconciliation in support of our commitment to wellness for all, and
to walking the path together in respect, peace, and harmony for future generations.”

3. Welcome to new Board Member, B. Glass.
B. Glass will be joining the Board meeting in April. In the interim she will be joining
committee meetings prior to the next meeting. B. Glass has met with C. Bergstrome and

B. Hutchinson to receive training on the library board portal and for a full tour of the
library and introduction to staff.

4. Approval of the agenda

Motion to approve the March 25, 2025, agenda.
Moved by: J. Wolochatiuk Seconded by: L. Boucher CARRIED

5. Guests & Delegations — M. Reisler presented to the Board about his position with the
Library as Marketing & Communications Coordinator.

6. Consent agenda
a. Approval of the Amended Minutes of the February 2025 Meeting
b. Ad hoc/Standing Committee Reports - none
c. Board Chair Report - attached
d. OLS Trustee Report — none

B. Hutchinson noted that moving forward a print copy of the agenda will be made available
in the board meetings for any members of the public who may attend. In addition, C.



Bergstrome will provide the agenda in pdf format on the website, in advance of coming
board meetings. J. Wolochatiuk inquired if Board minutes were public. C. Bergstrome stated
that Board meeting minutes are added to the Library website after they are approved by the
Library Board.

Motion to approve the consent agenda.
Moved by: D. Smith Seconded by: A. King CARRIED

7. Board Professional Development/Education - M. Reisler — Staff presentation

M. Reisler provided an introduction to himself, his work history and his work with the
Bracebridge Library as the Marketing & Communications Coordinator.

L. Boucher inquired about the possibility of including some patron profiles on the website or
social media, if patrons agree, to showcase the wide array of people who utilize the Library.
M. Reisler explained how he has started a similar project with staff and a display of “Staff
Picks” and staff blog posts. This could be expanded to include patrons as well.

8. New Business

a. CEO Evaluation Committee Progress Report
J. Wolochatiuk provided an update on the CEO Evaluation Committee’s progress, noting
that the evaluation process began in December 2024. She explained that one factor
contributing to the timeline was the committee’s learning curve with the SurveyMonkey
platform and ensuring the surveys were properly implemented. The committee
acknowledged that annual performance evaluations are a requirement but have not
consistently been completed on schedule. The committee expressed appreciation to A. King
for taking the lead in managing the SurveyMonkey process.

B. Hutchinson requested clarification on the estimated timeline for completion and the next
steps. J. Wolochatiuk responded that the committee had originally anticipated completing
the process by this time. The committee's next meeting is scheduled for April 16, 2025.
When asked whether survey responses had been collected, the committee confirmed that
data collection is complete.

L. Boucher asked whether the full Board would receive the evaluation report prior to it being
shared with the CEO, citing this as standard protocol. The committee indicated that a
detailed report would be shared directly with C. Bergstrome in a meeting with the committee,
and that a summary report would later be presented to the full Board. B. Hutchison and L.
Boucher raised concerns with this approach, emphasizing that the full Board should review
and approve the evaluation report before it is shared with the CEO. C. Bergstrome
confirmed that this two-meeting process—first with the Board, then with the CEO—is
consistent with her experience in other reviews.

D. Smith advised that in other municipal settings, such as the Town and District, the
evaluation is typically handled as a confidential human resources matter between the Mayor
or Chair and their respective CAOs.

The Board agreed to review the relevant policies (GOV-12) to confirm appropriate
procedures are being followed. The committee was asked to forward minutes of previous
meetings to the Board Chair.



9. Business arising
a. Strat Plan Working Group — Branded revision included for Board final review
B. Hutchinson thanked the Working group and full board for their review. She noted that
the fully branded and designed version of the updated Strategic Plan was completed
and ready for distribution, with Board approval.

Motion to approve and distribute the updated Strategic Plan.
Moved by: J. Wolochatiuk Seconded by: D. Smith CARRIED

10. Library Deficiencies Update

C. Bergstrome provided an update on the ongoing work to address the extensive deficiency
list associated with the new library facility. She also noted that, given the number and
severity of the issues identified, a request has been made for a comprehensive review of the
building.

B. Hutchinson asked that the recurring snow drift on the roof be formally documented,
acknowledging that the roof’'s exposure and design make this an ongoing issue the Library
and the Town will need to manage annually. C. Bergstrome expressed appreciation to Town
staff, particularly W. Crowe and new Director of Recreation, R. Cox, for their continued
support in addressing the list of deficiencies.

11. Correspondence — none
12. CEO Report

C. Bergstrome spoke to the previously distributed CEO Report, highlighting the positive
trends reflected in the year-over-year statistics. Since the opening of the new facility, the
Library has experienced growth across all areas, including in-person visits, program
offerings and attendance, circulation, and online engagement. She expressed gratitude to
staff for their continued dedication, emphasizing how well the team has adapted despite
ongoing challenges related to capacity and workload.

B. Hutchinson commented that the Library is not only experiencing steady growth but
exponential growth. While this is encouraging, she noted that such a rate of expansion may
eventually become unsustainable without appropriate resources and structural support.
C. Bergstrome also shared a selection of positive comments and kudos presented at the
most recent staff meeting.
13. Financial Committee Report

a. Proposed Organizational Chart

The Board discussed the proposed organizational chart that has been in discussion for several
months.



D. Smith inquired about the full-year cost associated with the recent adjustments to two staff
roles. C. Bergstrome confirmed that the total cost of these changes for a full year is $39,408.14,
as outlined in the report. When asked about the full job rates for the positions, she clarified that
these are not new roles, but adjustments to existing ones designed to better meet operational
needs while remaining cost-effective. As such, the financial impact for 2025 and beyond is
limited to the $39,408.14 figure, which has been verified by the Town of Bracebridge Finance
Department. Since the foundational salaries for these positions are already included in the
approved budget, the cost increase represents the only budgetary impact.

D. Smith expressed that, in his view, the changes should be delayed and taken to Council for
approval. In response, C. Bergstrome and B. Hutchinson explained that under the Public
Libraries Act, while the Town approves the Library’s total budget allocation, it does not have
authority over individual budget lines or internal staffing decisions. C. Bergstrome emphasized
that the Library maintains a positive working relationship with the Town and plans to share the
organizational changes with Council, in collaboration with the Town’s Finance Department, for
the purpose of transparency—not for additional approval—since the changes fall within the
Library’s 2025 approved budget.

When asked about anticipated wage adjustments for 2026, C. Bergstrome noted that cost-of-
living adjustments (COLA) for that year have not yet been provided by the Town, as the Library
aligns its salary grids with the Town'’s.

D. Smith voiced concern about broader Town budget implications. C. Bergstrome
acknowledged these concerns and reiterated that the Library has experienced exponential
growth since the opening of the new facility. While efforts were made to anticipate increased
demand, the full scope of new operations—including expanded square footage, increased
programming, and the addition of room rentals—could not be fully predicted. She explained that
the updated organizational chart reflects the Library’s current staffing needs and may continue
to evolve as services and demands grow.

B. Hutchinson added that, like the Library’s strategic plan, the organizational chart is a living

document, intended to adapt to the changing needs of the organization and the community it
serves. A. King voiced support for the proposed and revised organizational chart, stating that
due to the growth that it makes sense to adjust now to best serve the community.

Motion to approve the proposed and revised organizational chart.
Moved by: J. Wolochatiuk Seconded by: L. Boucher CARRIED

14. Policy Committee Report

a. OP-11: Library Patron Code of Conduct

J. Wolochatiuk raised several questions on behalf of D. Smith, who had departed the meeting
earlier.

J. Wolochatiuk asked whether a 48 hour “cooling-off’ period should be considered prior to
implementing exclusions from the Library. L. Boucher responded that such a provision is not
necessary, as the exclusion matrix already includes appropriate timelines and conditions to
ensure objectivity in decision-making, regardless of who is responsible for implementation. L.



Boucher added that other Town-operated facilities do not require a cooling-off period for
exclusions.

J. Wolochatiuk inquired about the delegation of authority in the event that the CEO is absent
during a situation requiring exclusion. C. Bergstrome explained that, in such cases, a member of
the Library’s management team would act in her place, in accordance with operational needs
and established protocols.

J. Wolochatiuk asked whether information about the appeals process would be included in
future exclusion notices. C. Bergstrome confirmed that it would be, and further explained that
the full appeals process is outlined in the Library’s OP-11: Patron Code of Conduct policy. This
policy will be publicly posted, readily accessible to all members of the public, and provided
directly to any patron who receives an exclusion notice to ensure full transparency.

J. Wolochatiuk inquired as to why the specific timeframe of 15 business days for an appeal had
been chosen. C. Bergstrome clarified that the timeline was designed to ensure accountability
and to facilitate timely resolution for all parties involved, including the patron, the CEO, and the
Library Board. J. Wolochatiuk noted that she felt the 15-business-day period was a generous
and reasonable timeframe.

Motion to approve the updated policy OP-11: Library Patron Code of Conduct
Moved by: L. Boucher Seconded by: A. King CARRIED

15. Date of next meeting — April 8, 2025 @ 1pm

16. Adjournment 2:41pm



